
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 28 October 2019

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Committee Room 1, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a East Philip Street, Walkden (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

5a City of Salford Community Stadium (Pages 9 - 10)

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY & REGENERATION BRIEFING 
28th OCTOBER 2019

TITLE: LAND AT EAST PHILIP STREET, SALFORD

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The City Mayor is recommended to:

a. approve the proposal that the community is given a 12 month period 
to allow funding to be secured and site investigations to be 
undertaken so that clear proposals can be developed

b.  instructs Urban Vision to progress agreement of terms with the 
community to give effect to the proposal as to the use/ maintenance 
of the site during the 12 month period, and

c. authorises the Shared Legal Service to, if appropriate, document the 
terms and to take all steps which are expedient to give effect to the 
above recommendations.

A further report will be submitted for consideration by City Mayor in 12 months to 
review the future use of the site.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

On 25 March 2019 City Mayor approved the disposal of land at East Philip Street, 
Salford to Urban Splash by way of 250 year lease for residential development.

On 31 March the decision associated with the sale was called in. Following a special 
meeting of the Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel on 17 April the decision to 
approve the sale was rescinded. Members were engaged and alternative options 
connected with the future use of the site were considered.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

KEY DECISION: YES

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

ON FORWARD LOOK:  YES 

1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Urban Splash originally planned to construct 9 Town Houses (HoUSe Product) on 
the East Philip Street site however technical advice relating to flood risk was 
disappointing and the HoUSe product was deemed unviable.

Despite the flooding issues Urban Splash remained committed to the acquisition 
given that the East Philip Street site was intrinsically linked to Paradise Works 
(opposite) which Urban Splash own (currently home to over 30 artist studio’s) and 
is adjacent to their new development on Springfield Lane.

Urban Splash revised proposals and confirmed that in the short to medium term 
they would undertake landscaping works and maintain the site to make it an 
attractive environment that could be utilised by occupiers at Paradise Works and 
the wider community.

In the longer term Urban Splash were to review their wider land holdings to bring 
forward a more comprehensive solution given difficulties with developing the East 
Philip Street site in isolation (flooding, size, shape, highway issues).

The City Mayor approved the sale to Urban Splash on 25 March 2019. However 
the decision was called in on 31 March and the sale was subsequently rescinded at 
the Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel on 17 April. Members were engaged and 
confirmed their support for the retention of the site by the Council for community 
use (garden/ orchard/ community space). 

Historically the Biospheric Foundation held a licence on the site (wef 2011) and 
created a Community Forest Garden. However in 2015 the Biospheric Foundation 
ceased operation and the site was left vacant and became heavily overgrown.

Since the decision to sell was rescinded, the community has held a number of non-
intrusive clean up events and the condition of the site is now much improved.

The site is known to have contamination issues and site investigation (SI) works 
are required to fully understand the extent of the contamination. Costs associated 
with SI works are likely to be in the region of £10,000. The Council has no monies 
available to fund the works.

The community has confirmed that it may be able to identify funding associated 
with SI works if the site was made available to them initially on an interim basis 
(circa 12 months).

Once contamination issues are known the community will be able to develop its 
proposals further.

Page 2



3

2.0

2.1

Details

Options connected with the future use of the site:

Option Detail Advantage Disadvantage
1 Sale to Urban Splash on 

unconditional basis
Generates an early capital 
receipt

Maintenance liabilities fall 
to developer

Scheme details not 
known at time of sale

Not supported by local 
community/ members

2 Sale to Urban Splash once 
redevelopment proposals 
advanced

Generates a capital 
receipt at a later date

Scheme details known at 
time of sale

Maintenance liabilities fall 
to developer at later date

Unknown timescales

Not supported by local 
community/ members

3 Retain for use by community Supported by local 
community/ Members

Opportunity for 
community to secure 
funding connected with SI 
and remediation

Maintenance liabilities fall 
to community

No capital receipt

No guarantee 
funding will be secured

No guarantee of 
continued community 
support

4 Retain use by community for 
an initial 12 month period 
thereafter use subject to 
review

Opportunity for 
community to secure 
funding connected with SI 
and remediation

Maintenance liabilities fall 
to community

Provides Council the 
opportunity to review the 
future use of the site

Potentially no capital 
receipt

No guarantee funding 
will be secured

No guarantee of 
continued community 
support

2.2 A local groundwork company (North and South Services) has also expressed an 

Page 3



4

2.3

interest in the site to expand its business. If made available the site would be 
cleared, fenced off, secured and used for the storage of materials used on a daily 
basis; pipes, flags, manhole covers and possibly a container. The proposed use is 
unlikely to be supported. 

Having reviewed the above options, and if a community use is supported, Option 4 
offers the most appropriate solution. The community will be given the opportunity to 
secure funding / develop proposals further and the Council will have flexibility to 
review options in 12 months time. 

3.0 Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The City Mayor is recommended to:

a. approve the proposal that the community is given a 12 month  
period to allow funding to be secured and site investigations to be 
undertaken so that clear proposals can be developed

b. instructs Urban Vision to progress agreement of terms with the 
community to give effect to the proposal as to the use/ 
maintenance of the site during the 12 month period, and

c. authorises the Shared Legal Service to, if appropriate, document 
the terms and to take all steps which are expedient to give effect to 
the above recommendations.

A further report will be submitted for consideration by City Mayor in 12 months to 
review the future use of the site.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Social impact
 Health and social care

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:   

There are no specific equality impact matters following from the proposals contained 
in this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 

ASSET VALUATION: Asset number: 275/MS/015

Page 4



5

Asset Value:    £250,000

Valuation date: March 2019

MEMBER COMMENTS: 

Councillor Critchley has confirmed:

 that clarity would be needed over the community’s responsibility for the site 
particularly relating to unforeseen and significant issues for example illegal 
encampment, fallen trees, fly tipping of large items etc

 the area of interest to the community is the former forest garden site, the area 
bounded by the river footpath, East Philip Street and Bridgewater Street.  The 
current plan includes a wider area, including part of the public highway and an 
area of mature trees.  I don't think it would be fair or appropriate to include 
these areas, as they could raise significant challenges for the volunteers. 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by David Green, Head of Regeneration, Shared 
Legal Service 234 3107

It would be prudent to enter into a formal arrangement with the community in order to 
clarify the obligations as to maintenance and issues in regard to liability for the site in 
the interim period. As part of this, protections could be included to avoid any statutory 
protection accruing to the community arising out of the use and maintenance of the 
site. The Shared Legal Service would be happy to work with UV / Salford colleagues 
in shaping the terms of such arrangement and the form of any documents as may be 
appropriate arising out of those terms.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 778 0498

At this stage there are no immediate financial implications. Options 1 and 2 would 
generate a capital receipt which would be used to repay existing borrowing. 
Retaining the site for community use would forfeit this receipt. If retained for 
community use for 12 months, financial implications will be considered again in 12 
months. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: None

HR IMPLICATIONS: None

Page 5



6

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  None 

CONTACT OFFICER: Angela Martens    TEL NO: 0161 779 6077

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Irwell Riverside

Page 6



12

4

Towers

C
H
AN

G
E
 W

AY

16
14

8

1 
to

 1
56

2

Newbank

Tower

10

2
4

8

Riverbank

1 to 156

23

23
a

23
f

15

1
2

28

1
 t

o

6
6

1
1

2
2

3
6

 to
 4

6

2 to 12

2

2

2
4

 to
 3

4

TWILLBROOK DRIVE

1
9

1

17

DEAN ROAD

1
7

PostsP
O

P
L

IN
 D

R
IV

E

RESERVOIR STREET

5
4

6
2

1 to 11

2O

2

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
T

E
 D

R
IV

E

1
2

H
A

L
F

 S
T

R
E

E
T

4
8

B
R

ID
G

E
W

A
T

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

to
 1

2

1
4

1

El Sub Sta

Springfield Court

1 to 77

Centre

1

Business

Springfield

6

River Irwell

2 to 146

El Sub Sta

Court

Greyfriars

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

4
0

27

26.8m

F
o
o

tb
ri

d
g
e

C
O

T
T

E
N

H
A

M
 L

A
N

E

EAST PHILIP STREET

5

21

Mill

Casablanca

23

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
20/03/2019
SJ8399SW

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2019

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:
City of Salford Community Stadium

Committee:
Property/Regeneration Briefing
Date: 28th October 2019

Category of exemption applied: 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person, including the Authority holding that information.

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Page 9

Agenda Item 5a



Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

Yes

Justification of decision

The report contains financial and contractual information which should remain 
exempt in accordance Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial Management

Date: 25th October 2019

Page 10


	Agenda
	3a East Philip Street, Walkden
	03aii Appx A

	5a City of Salford Community Stadium

